IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

RONALD DAVID HARRIS,

Appellant,

Docket No. 81746

Electronically Filed Jun 11 2021 10:03 a.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

VS.

JENNIFER FIGUEROA,

Respondent.

District Court No. D-20-606828-C

Appeal from Final Custody Decree

Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada In and for the County of Clark

The HONORABLE MATTHEW HARTER, presiding

Appellant's Opening Brief

LANCE HENDRON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 11151
625 S. 8th Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
702.758.5858
Lance@ghlawnv.com
Attorney for Appellant

DENISSE RAMOS, ESQ.
THE RAMOS LAW FIRM
719 South 6th Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
702.476-4827
dramos@ramoslaw.com

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Whether the District Court abused its discretion and violated Mr. Harris' I. right to due process when it granted sole legal custody to Respondent without providing Mr. Harris notice and an opportunity to be heard.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On April 22, 2020, Ms. Jennifer Figueroa filed a Complaint for Custody requesting sole legal and physical custody of the children she shares with Mr. Ronald Harris (1 ROA 1-4). Ms. Figueroa informed the district court she requested sole legal and physical custody because Mr. Harris pleaded guilty to felonies and is serving a lengthy prison sentence (1 ROA 4).

Mr. Harris submitted an Answer to Ms. Figueroa's Complaint on May 18, 2020 (1 ROA 42-53). Within the Answer, Mr. Harris objected to Ms. Figueroa's complaint, citing despite his circumstances, he desired to maintain a relationship with his children (1 ROA 42-53). Specifically, Mr. Harris requested he be permitted to speak with his children and be permitted to send them letters (1 ROA 50). Mr. Harris also requested he continue to receive joint legal custody so he may be informed concerning his children's health, education and overall wellbeing (1 ROA 50).

On July 16, 2020, the district court heard argument concerning Ms. Figueroa's complaint (A.A. Vol. 1 p. 1-6). Given that Mr. Harris was provided no

notice of this hearing, he was not present. After Ms. Figueroa was permitted to give lengthy argument and information concerning her complaint, the district court granted her request by providing sole legal custody of the children to Ms. Figueroa (A.A. Vol. 1 p. 2-5). The district court explained it granted sole legal custody to Ms. Figueroa pursuant to "Hayes versus Gallagher" given that "it's physically impossible for him to have any custody rights due to the fact that he is serving a prison sentence, an extended prison sentence in the state of Tennessee." (A.A. Vol. 1 p. 5).

STATEMENT OF FACTS

A rendition of facts is not necessary for the purpose of this appeal. The pertinent facts are contained within the Statement of the case above and within the argument below.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The District Court abused its discretion in awarding sole legal custody to Ms. Figueroa without providing Mr. Harris proper notice of the hearing on the complaint or an opportunity to be heard. Prior to rendering a decision in this case, Ms. Figueroa was given an opportunity to provide lengthy argument to the court in support of her request for sole legal custody. Given that Mr. Harris was provided no notice of the hearing, he was not given an equal opportunity to be heard. As a result, the district court granted Ms. Figueroa's request, providing her sole legal and

physical custody of the children. As such, Mr. Harris' parental rights were taken without sufficient opportunity to be heard in violation of his constitutional right to due process. Given this, the district court abused its discretion and reversal is mandated.

ARGUMENT

- 1. The District Court Abused Its Discretion When It Granted Sole Legal Custody to Ms. Figueroa Without Providing Mr. Harris Notice and An Opportunity to be Heard.
 - a. Legal Standard

This Court has repeatedly recognized "the district court's broad discretionary powers to determine child custody matters" and "will not disturb the district court's custody determinations absent a clear abuse of discretion. *Ellis v. Carucci*, 123 Nev. 145, 149, 161 P.3d 239, 241 (2007). *See also Rivero v. Rivero*, 125 Nev. 410, 428, 216 P.3d 213, 226 (2009). However, the district court's findings must be supported with substantial evidence. *Id.* "Substantial evidence is evidence that a reasonable person may accept as adequate to sustain a judgment." *Id.* (internal quotation marks omitted). However, deference is not owed to legal error. *Davis v. Ewalefo*, 131 Nev. 445, 450, 352 P.3d 1139, 1142 (2015). As demonstrated within this appeal, the district court's decision amounted to an abuse of discretion.

b. The District Court's granting of Ms. Figueroa's request for sole custody without providing Mr. Harris notice of the hearing or an opportunity to be heard is violative of his constitutional due process rights and amounts to an abuse of discretion.

In this case, it was incumbent upon the district court to provide Mr. Harris an opportunity to be heard at the July 16, 2020 argument concerning Ms. Figueroa's complaint for sole legal and physical custody. The failure to do so is violative of Mr. Harris' due process rights and requires reversal.

Due process of law is guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States constitution and the Nevada constitution. *See* U.S. Const. Amend. 14 § 1; Nev. Const. Art 1, § 8(5). Specifically, Article 1, § 8(5) of the Nevada Constitution provides that no personal shall be deprived of life, liberty or property without due process of law. *Id.* The Nevada Supreme Court has recognized that due process protects certain substantial and fundamental rights, including the interest parents have in the custody of their children. *Gordon v. Geiger*, 133 Nev. 542, 402 P.3d 671 (2017), citing *Rico v. Rodriguez*, 121 Nev. 695, 704, 120 P.3d 812, 818 (2005).

Due process requires notice and a hearing before this right is affected. *See Gordon*, 133 Nev. 542. For this reason, orders that alter custody *sua sponte* generally violate due process. *See id.* at 546, 402 P.3d at 674–75 (holding that a district court's *sua sponte* order modifying visitation without providing notice and a hearing violated due process); *Micone v. Micone*, 132 Nev. 156, 159, 368 P.3d 1195, 1197 (2016) (holding that a district court's surprise order awarding primary physical custody to nonparty grandparents violated due process where the parents were not provided notice).

Due process requires sufficient notice before such parental rights are affected. *Wiese v. Granata*, 110 Nev. 1410, 1412, 887 P.2d 744, 745 (1994). Accordingly, a party threatened with loss of a parental right must be given sufficient opportunity to disprove evidence presented. *Wallace v. Wallace*, 112 Nev. 1015, 1020, 922 P.2d 541, 544 (1996).

In this case, Mr. Harris' constitutional due process rights were violated when the district court issued its Order providing Ms. Figueroa sole legal custody of Mr. Harris' children, after it failed to provide notice to Mr. Harris concerning the hearing or providing him an opportunity to be heard. Here, a permanent change to Mr. Harris' legal custody affects Mr. Harris' fundamental right concerning the custody of his children. Mr. Harris never received notice of the hearing concerning the custody order. As a result, Mr. Harris never had an opportunity to be heard. Mr. Harris was further unable to contest or provide any argument concerning Ms. Figueroa's statements at the July 16, 2020 hearing.

A review of the record in this case does not provide any information that Mr. Harris was noticed of the July 16, 2020 hearing wherein the district court revoked his shared legal custody, providing sole legal custody to Ms. Figueroa. The record is similarly devoid of any information demonstrating Mr. Harris was provided an opportunity to be present and heard at the hearing concerning custody. Upon information and belief, at the time of the hearing, it was common practice that

3

4 5

67

8

10

11 12

13 14

15

16

17

18

19

2021

2223

24

2526

27

28

incarcerated individuals have been permitted to make court appearances via remote means.

Moreover, the district courts finding – that Mr. Harris would have no legal rights to his children – is not supported by substantial evidence. Legal custody involves having basic legal responsibility for a child and making major decisions regarding the child, including the child's health, education, and religious upbringing. Mack v. Ashlock, 112 Nev. 1062, 1067, 921 P.2d 1258, 1262 (1996). Joint legal custody can exist regardless of the physical custody arrangements of the parties. NRS 125.490(2); *Mack*, 112 Nev. At 1067, 921 P.2d at 1262. The parents need not have equal decision-making power in a joint custody situation. Rivero, 125 Nev. at 421, citing Fenwick v. Fenwick, 114 S.W. 3d 767, 776 (Ky. 2003). When making a custody determination, the sole consideration is the best interest of the child. NRS 125C.0035(1); Davis v. Ewalefo, 131 Nev. 445, 451, 352 P.3d 1139, 1143 (2015). Legal custody generally has no relation to a parent's financial or living conditions, as it concerns the parents' legal responsibility for "making major decisions regarding the child, including the child's health, education, and religious upbringing." *Rivero*, 125 Nev. at 421, 216 P.3d at 221.

Within the complaint as the basis for obtaining sole legal custody, Ms. Figueroa only cited that Mr. Harris was incarcerated long term for offenses he had committed. It is important to note these offenses *were not* committed against his

children with whom he shares with Ms. Figueroa. Under these circumstances, the district court's decision granting sole legal custody to Ms. Figueroa based upon this fact alone is not based upon substantial evidence. This is especially true when considering this Court has held legal custody¹ generally has no relation to a parent's financial or living conditions. *Id.* When combined with the fact that Mr. Harris was provided no notice of the hearing, and thus no opportunity to be heard, it is clear reversal is required.

Therefore, Harris requests this Court remand this matter to the District Court with direction for joint legal custody to be reinstated unless or until either party meets the burden to modify custody and after Mr. Harris has had an opportunity to be heard on this issue.

///

18 | | ///

15

16

17

19 | | ///

2021

22

23

2425

26

2728

¹ Mr. Harris does not contest the district court's awarding of sole physical custody to Ms. Figueroa, rather, he only contends the district court stripping him of all legal rights to his children amounts to an abuse of discretion.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing facts and legal argument, Mr. Harris respectfully requests that this Honorable Court reverse the District Court's decisions as set forth in this appeal.