IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

RONALD DAVID HARRIS,

Appellant,

Electronically Filed Jul 12 2021 10:12 p.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

District Court No. D-20-606828-C

Docket No. 81746

VS.

JENNIFER FIGUEROA,

Respondent,

Appeal from Final Custody Decree

Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada In and for the County of Clark

The HONORABLE MATTHEW HARTER, presiding

Respondent's Answering Brief

THE RAMOS LAW FIRM

Denisse Y. Ramos Esq. Nevada Bar No.: 14413 719 South 6th Street Las Vegas NV, 89101 Phone: (702) 476-4827 d.ramos@ramoslawnv.com

Attorney for Respondent Jennifer Figueroa

NRAP 26.1 DISCLOSURE

INTRODUCTION

Respondent JENNIFER FIGUEROA ("Ms. Figueroa") brought the underlying action asking the district court to grant her sole legal and physical custody of the parties minor children. Notwithstanding the numerous attempts to effectuate service on the Appellant RONALD DAVID HARRIS ("Mr. Harris") through alternate means, Ms. Figueroa was able to serve Mr. Harris by mailing him the summons and complaint to his last known address.

Mr. Harris received notice of the complaint filed and submitted an Answer on May 11, 2020. The Notice of Order of Appearance for the hearing that took place on July 16, 2020, was mailed to the same address the Appellant previously received the complaint. It was not until the court entered into a custody decree awarding Ms. Figueroa sole legal and physical custody, did Mr. Harris decided to contest the order based on a single issue of notice. However, Mr. Harris has never presented any basis to question the sufficiency of service to his last known address when he continuously answered every pleading file by Ms. Figueroa since 2017. Mr. Harris wants to evade the effects of the final order by claiming ineffective service without any substance or merit.

///

STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. Facts Regarding Service

On April 22, 2020, Ms. Figueroa filed a Complaint for Custody requesting sole legal and physical custody of the children. Upon receipt of the filed summons, Ms. Figueroa south to serve the Complaint on Mr. Harris through traditional means however due to Mr. Harris current incarceration alternate means was requested. On April 30, 2020, Mr. Harris was served with the Complaint at his last known address at #584414 NECX, PO Box 5000 Mountain City, TN 37683. On the same date an affidavit of service was filed by Ms. Figueroa certifying that service was made.

Although Mr. Harris claims that Ms. Figueroa has flouted the rules of service, this is not the case. Pursuant to NRS 14.030, Ms. Figueroa effectuated service of process by sending the following documents to the defendants last known address:

- a. Complaint
- b. Exhibits
- c. Summons

Notwithstanding the claim that there was no notice, Mr. Harris managed to receive notice of the Complaint and on May 11, 2020, filed his answer certifying

1 2 3

that his address was in fact #584414 NECX, PO Box 5000 Mountain City, TN 37683, the same address that was used to notify him of the hearing.

B. Procedural Posture

The custody complaint was filed on April 22, 2020. Service was made on Mr. Harris on April 30, 2020 pursuant to NRS 14.030(1). The affidavit of service required by NRS 14.030(3) was filed on April 30, 2020. On May 11, 2020, the Answer was mailed to Ms. Figueroa's address and on May 18, 2020, service was posted with the district court clerk.

On May 22, 2020, the court sent Notice of Order of Appearance For:

NRCP 16.205 Case Management Conference and the hearing that was set for

July 16, 2020. The certificate of mailing was filed by Department N Judicial

Executive Assistant. The Certificate of Mailing certified that both parties were

served by via first class mail, postage fully prepaid to their last known address.

On July 16, 2020, the hearing took place and the court entered into a custody decree. This appeal followed.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Mr. Harris Due process rights guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States constitution and the Nevada constitution. See U.S. Const.

Amend. 14 § 1; Nev. Const. Art 1, § 8(5), were not violated because service and notice of hearing was proper. Mr. Harris certified his address with the court when he filed an answer to the complaint. The address provided by Mr. Harris was utilized to effectuate service of the hearing, providing him sufficient notice to attend the hearing and be heard. Mr. Harris failed to attend the hearing but was given an opportunity to be heard by virtue of his filed answer.

Further the district court did not err in providing Ms. Figueroa sole legal and physical custody. The court weighed the best interest factors and made a determination that vested sole custody in Ms. Figueroa. There was substantial evidence that is adequate enough to sustain a judgment and the district court's factual findings does not rise to the level of abuse of discretion.

DISCUSSION

I. <u>The District Court Properly Provided Mr. Harris Notice and An</u> Opportunity to be Heard.

A. Standard of Appellate Review

The issue presented before the court is whether Mr. Harris was properly served with Notice of the July 16, 2020, preserving his Constitutional right to due process.

The standard set forth in Appellant's opening brief is generally correct insisting that the court determine whether the District Court abused its discretion and violated Mr. Harris' right to due process when it granted sole legal custody to Ms. Figueroa. Mr. Harris claim that the court did not provide notice and an opportunity to be heard however is overly simplified and incorrect.

Unless a review of district court's factual findings rises to the level of abuse of discretion, those findings will not be set aside unless they are clearly erroneous or not supported by substantial evidence. *Ogawa v. Ogawa*, 125 Nev. 660, 668, 221 P.3d 699, 704 (2009). Substantial evidence is evidence that a reasonable person may accept as adequate to sustain a judgment. *Ellis v. Carucci*, 123 Nev. 145, 149, 161 P.3d 239, 242 (2007).

B. Service and Notice of the Custody Hearing on Mr. Harris Complies with All Requirements of Nevada Law.

The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and the Nevada Constitution both guarantee that no person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property without Due Process of law. *See* U.S. Const. Amend. 14 § 1; Nev. Const. Art 1, § 8(5). In this case the notice of a hearing regarding a parent's right to custody of their children must adhere by proper service pursuant to NRCP 5. One of the specific methods of serving a written notice, appearance,

Q

demand, offer of judgment, or any similar paper is by mailing it to the person's last known address--in which event service is complete upon mailing. NRCP 5(b)(2)(C).

Service in this case was made pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(C) when the District Court mailed Mr. Harris the Notice of Order Of Appearance For: NRCP 16.205 Case Management Conference that was set for July 16, 2021 at 3:30 PM. On May 22, 202, Mark Fernandez, the District Courts Judicial Executive Assistance for Department N, certified that he mailed, via first class mail, postage fully prepaid, the foregoing Notice of Case Management Conference to:

Ronald David Harris NECX PO BOX 5000 #584414 Mountain City, TN 37683

The above address was then utilized as Mr. Harris last known address.

A thorough review of the pleadings, notices, and other documents filed in this matter demonstrate that Mr. Harris not only received case documents at the above address, but he also provided the court with this same address certifying it as his current address. Initially the complaint filed by Ms. Figueroa on April 22, 2020, was served on Mr. Harris by sending it to the address above.

Within 21 days after being served at the above address, Mr. Harris filed his answer on May 11, 2020, pursuant to NRCP 12. In the Certificate of Mailing Mr.

Harris provided the court for his answer, Mr. Harris also certified that his mailing address was NECX PO BOX 5000, #584414, Mountain City, TN 37683. At no time prior to answering the complaint did Mr. Harris claim insufficient service of process or mention any issues arising out of utilizing his last known address pursuant to a NRCP 12 dismissal.

Therefore, when the court utilized the above address and deposited the Notice of Hearing in the mail on May 22, 2020, service was proper. Mr. Harris had notice and sufficient time before the July 16, 2020, hearing to assert his constitutional right to be heard. Mr. Harris however failed to be present either by video or telephonic means and at no time did he request such an appearance.

C. Mr. Harris had an opportunity to be heard through his filed answer.

Mr. Harris had a meaningful opportunity to be heard by virtue of his filed answer. He provided an extensive explanation concerning the allegations made in Ms. Figueroa's complaint. In a twelve (12) page answer, Mr. Harris was able to address every claim and allegation asserted in the complaint. Mr. Harris answer was served on Ms. Figueroa and the court noted having it on the record.

Further, the district court clearly acknowledge that Mr. Harris filed answer was taken in consideration when the judge stated "I assumed that from yours and his" when referencing information regarding case jurisdiction given by both

12 13

15

16

14

17 18

19 20

21

22 23

24 25

26

27

28

parties. (A.A. Vol. 1 p. 2). Ms. Figueroa's only additional input heard regarding child custody was when she asked about the amount of control she has with sole legal custody. (A.A. Vol. 1 p. 5). Most of the hearing discussed child support and Mr. Harris income from his royalties. At no time during the hearing, did Ms. Figueroa give a lengthier argument or information concerning child custody. The court gave both parties equal opportunity to be heard on the child custody issue by virtue of their pleadings, the hearing merely provided a decision on those same pleadings.

II. The District Court Did Not Err in Granting Sole Legal and Sole Physical Custody to Ms. Figueroa.

A trial court enjoys broad discretionary powers in determining questions of child custody. An appellate court will not disturb a lower court's determinations absent a clear abuse of discretion. Moreover, in child custody matters, a presumption exists that the trial court properly exercised its discretion in deciding what constitutes a child's best interest. *Primm v. Lopes*, 109 Nev. 502, 503, 853 P.2d 103, 103, (1993).

A. Sole legal custody to Ms. Figueroa is in the children's best interest. It is true that the United States Supreme Court has said parents have a

fundamental liberty interest in caring for and the custody of their children. *Troxel* v. *Granville*, 530 U.S. 57, 65 (2000). However, it is also true that joint legal custody requires that the parents be able to cooperate, communicate, and compromise to act in the best interest of the child. *Rivero v. Rivero*, 125 Nev. 410, 420–21, 216 P.3d 213, 221 (2009).

NRS 125C.002 provides:

- 1. When a court is making a determination regarding the legal custody of a child, there is a presumption, affecting the burden of proof, that joint legal custody would be in the best interest of a minor child if:
- (a) The parents have agreed to an award of joint legal custody or so agree in open court at a hearing for the purpose of determining the legal custody of the minor child; or
- (b) A parent has demonstrated, or has attempted to demonstrate but has had his or her efforts frustrated by the other parent, an intent to establish a meaningful relationship with the minor child.
- 2. The court may award joint legal custody without awarding joint physical custody.

The presumption in NRS 125C.002, is rebutted when the court makes findings regarding the parents' ability to cooperate, communicate, or compromise in the best interests of their child and specific findings that sole legal custody is in the child's best interests. *Doucettperry v. Doucettperry*, 80114-COA, 2020 WL 6445845, at 6 (Nev. App. Nov. 2, 2020). "Legal custody involves having basic legal responsibility for a child and making major decisions regarding the child, including the child's health, education, and religious upbringing... Joint legal

requires that the parents are able to cooperate, communicate, and compromise to act in the best interest of the child." *Id*.

The Court found that it is impossible for Mr. Harris to have any legal responsibility for his children due to his incarceration and lengthy prison sentence. Mr. Harris would not have the ability to cooperate, communicate, or compromise in the best interest of their child and thus the court did not err in vesting sole legal custody in Ms. Figueroa. Here the sole consideration is the child's best interests. See NRS 125C.0035(1) and(3)(a). See NRS 125C.0035(4) (providing that the court shall consider the enumerated best interest factors "among other things"); *Nance v. Ferraro*, 134 Nev. 152, 158, 418 P.3d 679, 685 (Ct. App. 2018) (explaining that the statutory best interest factors provides a nonexhaustive list for the district court's consideration).

The Nevada Supreme Court has emphasized that no single factor necessarily possesses any intrinsically greater weight than the others, and it never said that every factor must be given exactly equal mathematical weight. Quite to the contrary, it's repeatedly held that the district court possesses "broad discretionary powers" on how to weigh each factor in any particular case. *Ellis*, 123 Nev. at 149, 161 P.3d at 242

///

///

///

When the court decided to give Ms. Figueroa sole legal custody it rightfully used its discretion where district courts may enter an "order for the custody, care, education, maintenance and support of the minor child as appears in his or her best interest." NRS 125C.0045(l)(a); *see also Toth v. Toth*, 80 Nev. 33, 36-37, 389 P.2d 73, 75 (1964). Although the district court may entertain certain trends in family law, the district court has broad discretion to consider the parties' situations and preferences when it makes findings. See *Wallace v. Wallace*, 112 Nev. 1015, 1019, 922 P.2d 541, 543 (1996)

Given that the district court provided an opportunity to be heard on the pleadings and sufficient notice of the July 16, 2020, hearing to both parties due process was clearly preserved. Further the district court effectively use its broad discretion when weighing the best interest factors and considering the parties' situations when making its findings. Therefore, there was substantial evidence that was adequate enough to sustain a judgment and the district court's factual findings does not rise to the level of abuse of discretion.

1	
2	CONCLUSION
3	Based on the foregoing, Respondent respectfully request that this Appeal be
4	denied, and the District Court Order be upheld.
5	
6	
7	DATED this 12 th Day of July 2021.
8	
9 10	/s/ Denisse Ramos
11	Denisse Ramos Esq. Nevada Bar No.: 14413
12	The Ramos Law Firm 719 South 6th Street
13	Las Vegas NV, 89101 Phone: (702) 476-4827
14	d.ramos(a)ramoslawnv.com
15	Attorney for Respondent Jennifer Figueroa
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21 22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	

ATTORNEY'S CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

1. I hereby certify that this brief complies with the formatting requirements of NRAP 32(a)(4), the typeface requirements of NRAP 32(a)(5) and the type style requirements of NRAP 32(a)(6) because:

This brief has been prepared in a proportionally spaced typeface using Times New Roman in 14 size font.

2. I further certify that this brief complies with the page or type-volume limitations of NRAP 32(a)(7) because, excluding the parts of the brief exempted by NRAP 32(a)(7)(C), it is either:

Proportionally spaced, has a typeface of 14 points or more and 3,276 words which does not exceed the 14,000 word limit.

3. I hereby certify that I have read this appellate brief, and to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, it is not frivolous or interposed for any improper purpose. I further certify that this brief complies with all applicable Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, in particular NRAP.28(e)(1), which requires every assertion in the brief regarding matters in the record to be supported by a reference to the page and volume number, if any, of the transcript or appendix where the matter relied on is to be found. I understand that I may be subject to sanctions in

the event that the accompanying brief is not in conformity with the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.

DATED this 12th Day of July 2021.

/s/ Denisse Ramos
Denisse Ramos Esq.
Nevada Bar No.: 14413
The Ramos Law Firm
719 South 6th Street
Las Vegas NV, 89101
Phone: (702) 476-4827
d.ramos@ramoslawnv.com

Attorney for Respondent Jennifer Figueroa

1	
2	CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
3	I certify that I am an employee of the Ramos Law Firm and that on this date the
4	RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF was filed electronically with the Clerk
5 6	of the Supreme Court, and therefore electronic service was made with the master
7	service list as follows:
8 9 10	LANCE HENDRON, ESQ. Nevada Bar No. 8844 625 S. 8th STREET
11	Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
12	702.758.5858 Lance@ghlawnv.com
13	Attorney for Appellant Ronald David Harris
14	Romana Bavia Harris
15	
16	DATED this 12 th Day of July 2021.
17 18	
19	/s/ Raymond Ramos
20	An Employee of the Ramos Law Firm
21	
22	
23	
24	
2526	
27	
28